

## HOUSE BILL No. 2128

By Committee on Appropriations

1-30

---

AN ACT concerning the secretary of state; relating to the distribution of certain publications and documents thereof; amending K.S.A. 75-430, 75-431, 75-432, 77-151, 77-428, 77-429 and 77-430a and K.S.A. 2002 Supp. 77-138, 77-165, 77-430 and 77-431 and repealing the existing sections.

*Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Kansas:*

Section 1. K.S.A. 75-430 is hereby amended to read as follows: 75-430. (a) The secretary of state shall compile, index and publish a publication to be known as the Kansas register. Such register shall contain:

(1) All acts of the legislature required to be published in the Kansas register;

(2) all executive orders and directives of the governor which are required to be filed in the office of the secretary of state;

(3) summaries of all opinions of the attorney general interpreting acts of the legislature as prepared by the office of the attorney general;

(4) notice of any public comment period on contemplated modification of an existing rule and regulation, which notice shall contain the information required by K.S.A. 77-421 and amendments thereto;

(5) all notices of hearings on proposed administrative rules and regulations required to be filed in the office of the secretary of state under the provisions of article 4 of chapter 77 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated and a summary of all proposed administrative rules and regulations to be considered at such hearings together with the address of the state agency from which a copy of the full text of the proposed rules and regulations may be received;

(6) the full text of all administrative rules and regulations which have been adopted and filed in accordance with the provisions of article 4 of chapter 77 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, except that the secretary of state may publish a summary of any rule and regulation together with the address of the state agency from which a copy of the full text of the proposed rules and regulations may be received, if such rule and regulation is lengthy and expensive to publish and otherwise available in published form and a summary will, in the opinion of the secretary, properly notify the public of the contents of such rule and regulation;

1 (7) a cumulative index of all administrative rules and regulations  
2 which have been adopted and filed in accordance with the provisions of  
3 article 4 of chapter 77 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated;

4 (8) all notices of hearings of special legislative interim study commit-  
5 tees, descriptions of all prefiled bills and resolutions and descriptions of  
6 all bills and resolutions introduced in the legislature during any session  
7 of the legislature, and other legislative information which is approved for  
8 publication by the legislative coordinating council;

9 (9) the hearings docket of the Kansas supreme court and the court  
10 of appeals;

11 (10) summaries of all orders of the board of tax appeals which have  
12 statewide application;

13 (11) all advertisements for contracts for construction, repairs, im-  
14 provements or purchases by the state of Kansas or any agency thereof for  
15 which competitive bids are required; and

16 (12) any other information which the secretary of state deems to be  
17 of sufficient interest to the general public to merit its publication or which  
18 is required by law to be published in the Kansas register.

19 (b) The secretary of state shall publish such register at regular inter-  
20 vals, but not less than weekly.

21 (c) The secretary of state may omit from the register any information  
22 the publication of which the secretary deems cumbersome, expensive, or  
23 otherwise inexpedient, if the information is made available ~~in printed or~~  
24 ~~processed form~~ by the adopting agency on application for it, and if the  
25 register contains a notice stating the general subject matter of the infor-  
26 mation and the manner in which a copy of it may be obtained.

27 (d) ~~One copy of each issue of~~ The register shall be ~~made available~~  
28 *provided* without charge on request to each officer, board, commission,  
29 and department of the state having statewide jurisdiction, to each mem-  
30 ber of the legislature, to each county clerk in the state, and to the supreme  
31 court, court of appeals and each district court.

32 (e) The secretary of state shall ~~make copies of~~ *provide* the register  
33 ~~available~~ to other persons on payment of a fee to be fixed by the secretary  
34 of state under K.S.A. 75-433, and amendments thereto.

35 (f) *Any publication requirements under this section may be accom-*  
36 *plished by providing the information in an electronic format.*

37 Sec. 2. K.S.A. 75-431 is hereby amended to read as follows: 75-431.

38 (a) Each agency shall file materials for publication in the Kansas register  
39 by delivering to the office of the secretary of state ~~during normal working~~  
40 ~~hours two certified copies a copy of the document information to be filed,~~  
41 ~~except that rules and regulations required to be filed in the office of the~~  
42 ~~secretary of state under the provisions of article 4 of chapter 77 of the~~  
43 ~~Kansas Statutes Annotated shall be filed in triplicate. On receipt of a~~

1 ~~document required by this act to be published in the register, the sec-~~  
2 ~~retary of state shall note the day and hour of filing on the certified copies.~~  
3 *published. Materials filed for publication in the Kansas register shall be*  
4 *in the format required by the secretary of state. One certified copy of*  
5 ~~each filed document~~ *The published information shall be maintained in*  
6 *original form by the secretary of state for ~~six months~~ 90 days after the*  
7 *publication of the document in the Kansas register.*

8 (b) *All notices of hearings on proposed administrative rules and reg-*  
9 *ulations and the full text of adopted rules and regulations shall be filed*  
10 *for publication in the Kansas register under the provisions of article 4 of*  
11 *chapter 77 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto.*  
12 *If there is a conflict, the official text of a rule and regulation is the text*  
13 *on file with the secretary of state and not the text published in the register*  
14 *or on file with the issuing agency.*

15 (c) *The secretary of state is hereby authorized to adopt rules and*  
16 *regulations necessary to the effective administration of this act. Such rules*  
17 *and regulations may include, but are not limited to, rules prescribing*  
18 ~~paper size and~~ *the format of documents required to be published by this*  
19 *act. The secretary of state may refuse to accept for filing and publication*  
20 ~~any document~~ *information that does not substantially conform to the*  
21 *promulgated rules and regulations.*

22 (d) *Upon otherwise complying with the provisions of this section, the*  
23 *secretary of state may destroy the original copies of all information sub-*  
24 *mitted for publication.*

25 Sec. 3. K.S.A. 75-432 is hereby amended to read as follows: 75-432.

26 (a) Each issue of the register shall contain a table of contents.

27 (b) A cumulative index to all information required by this act to be  
28 published during the previous year shall be published at least once each  
29 year.

30 (c) Each document submitted to the secretary of state for publication  
31 as provided in this act must be certified by an official of the submitting  
32 agency authorized to certify documents of that agency.

33 ~~(d) Each agency shall designate at least one individual to act as a~~  
34 ~~liaison through whom all required documents may be submitted to the~~  
35 ~~secretary of state for publication.~~

36 ~~(e) Each issue of the register shall be punched for standard three-~~  
37 ~~ring binders.~~

38 Sec. 4. K.S.A. 2002 Supp. 77-138 is hereby amended to read as fol-  
39 lows: 77-138. (a) Volumes of the Kansas Statutes Annotated shall be  
40 printed and bound by the director of printing and delivered to the sec-  
41 retary of state who shall dispose of them as follows:

42 *First*, the secretary of state shall deposit in the supreme court law  
43 library and in the state library such number of copies as the state law

1 librarian and the state librarian, respectively, shall request for use in the  
2 law library and the state library, for the purposes of the publication col-  
3 lection and depository system established under K.S.A. 75-2566, and  
4 amendments thereto, and for the purpose of making exchanges with the  
5 various states and territories, and the secretary of state shall retain one  
6 set for the secretary's use in the secretary's office.

7 *Second*, (1) the secretary of state shall distribute ~~two one complete sets~~  
8 *set* of the Kansas Statutes Annotated to each member of the legislature  
9 ~~at each regular session, one set of which shall have the respective mem-~~  
10 ~~ber's name printed thereon following such member's election or appoint-~~  
11 ~~ment to such member's first term of office in the legislature.~~

12 (2) The secretary of state shall distribute such number of complete  
13 sets and individual volumes of the Kansas Statutes Annotated: (A) To the  
14 office of revisor of statutes as the revisor of statutes shall request; (B) to  
15 the legislative research department as the director of legislative research  
16 shall request; (C) to the division of post audit as the post auditor shall  
17 request; (D) to the division of legislative administrative services as the  
18 director of legislative administrative services shall request; and (E) to the  
19 judicial branch of state government as the chief justice of the supreme  
20 court shall request.

21 (3) The secretary of state shall distribute: (A) Two sets to each rep-  
22 resentative in congress and United States senator from the state of Kan-  
23 sas, upon request by such representative or senator; (B) one set each to  
24 the governor, lieutenant governor and attorney general; (C) to Washburn  
25 university school of law, the number of sets, not to exceed 60 sets, that  
26 the librarian of the school of law certifies to the secretary of state as  
27 necessary for the purpose of exchanging with other states and territories  
28 and to be kept in the library for the use of faculty and students of the  
29 university; (D) to the school of law of the university of Kansas, the number  
30 of sets, not to exceed 60 sets, that the librarian of the school of law certifies  
31 to the secretary of state as necessary for the purpose of exchanging with  
32 other states and territories and to be kept in the library for the use of  
33 faculty and students of the university; (E) to the clerk of the district court  
34 of the United States for the state of Kansas, the number of sets, not to  
35 exceed five sets, as are requested by such clerk; (F) one set to each county  
36 law library in the state, upon request by the librarian thereof; (G) to each  
37 county clerk, the number of sets requested by the county clerk, not to  
38 exceed seven sets, to be distributed not more than one set each to the  
39 county or district attorney, the county clerk, the county counselor, if any,  
40 the register of deeds, the sheriff, the county treasurer, and the board of  
41 county commissioners, which set shall be retained by the county clerk for  
42 use by such board; (H) not more than one set to each city of the third  
43 class, one set to each city of the second class and two sets to each city of

1 the first class, upon request by the city clerk; and (I) one set to the state  
2 historical society library.

3 *Third*, the balance of statute books, after the above distribution shall  
4 be kept by the secretary of state for sale.

5 (b) The secretary of state shall sell each volume of the Kansas Statutes  
6 Annotated, including replacement volumes, at the per volume price fixed  
7 therefor by the legislative coordinating council under this section. Gen-  
8 eral index volumes, when sold separately and not as a part of a set of  
9 cumulative supplements, shall be sold at the per volume price fixed there-  
10 for by the legislative coordinating council. The secretary of state shall  
11 remit all moneys received from such sales under this section to the state  
12 treasurer in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and  
13 amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state  
14 treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state treasury to the credit  
15 of the state general fund.

16 (c) The legislative coordinating council shall fix the per volume price  
17 of each volume of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, including replacement  
18 volumes, sold under this section to recover the costs of printing and bind-  
19 ing such volumes. The legislative coordinating council shall revise such  
20 prices from time to time for the purposes of covering and recovering such  
21 costs.

22 Sec. 5. K.S.A. 77-151 is hereby amended to read as follows: 77-151.

23 (a) Each year the revisor of statutes shall edit and prepare for printing  
24 and publication such volumes of the Kansas Statutes Annotated as have  
25 been included in the detailed budget of the legislative coordinating coun-  
26 cil for the revisor of statutes. Except as otherwise provided by law for  
27 volumes containing constitutions and the general index, the volume or  
28 volumes published each year shall contain all of the statutes in force and  
29 effect then contained in the volume or volumes of the Kansas Statutes  
30 Annotated being replaced and the then current supplements thereto, to-  
31 gether with all acts passed by the current session of the legislature and  
32 assigned by the revisor of statutes to chapters in the volume or volumes  
33 being newly published.

34 (b) When more than one volume is being newly published in any year,  
35 the material in the replacement volumes shall be divided between or  
36 among the replacement volumes as nearly equally as practicable by the  
37 revisor of statutes. Each volume shall be printed and bound by the divi-  
38 sion of printing in the format prescribed by K.S.A. 77-152 and amend-  
39 ments thereto. Replacement volumes shall not contain volume indexes.  
40 In editing and preparing the material to be contained in replacement  
41 volumes of the Kansas Statutes Annotated for publication, the provisions  
42 of K.S.A. 77-133, 77-136, 77-136a and 77-152, and amendments to these  
43 statutes, shall govern the revisor and the division of printing, insofar as

1 the same can be made applicable, and the statutes to be contained in  
2 replacement volumes shall be authenticated in the same manner as re-  
3 quired under K.S.A. 77-137 and amendments thereto. After publication  
4 of replacement volumes, each shall thereafter be kept up to date by cu-  
5 mulative supplements in the same manner as provided for supplementa-  
6 tion of Kansas Statutes Annotated by K.S.A. 77-163 *et seq.* and amend-  
7 ments thereto.

8 (c) Replacement volumes of the Kansas Statutes Annotated shall be  
9 printed in the number of copies specified by the revisor of statutes, sub-  
10 ject to available appropriations, and shall be distributed and sold in the  
11 same manner as provided in K.S.A. ~~77-138~~ 77-165 and amendments  
12 thereto as for the distribution of volumes of the Kansas Statutes  
13 Annotated.

14 Sec. 6. K.S.A. 2002 Supp. 77-165 is hereby amended to read as fol-  
15 lows: 77-165. (a) Such number of copies of the cumulative supplements  
16 for each volume of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, corresponding as  
17 nearly as possible in size and page with the current bound volumes, as is  
18 specified by the revisor of statutes, subject to available appropriations,  
19 shall be printed by the director of printing and delivered to the secretary  
20 of state. Each year such number of sets of the general index paperbound  
21 volume or volumes as is specified by the revisor of statutes, subject to  
22 available appropriations, shall be printed by the director of printing and  
23 delivered to the secretary of state. For purposes of this section the general  
24 index paperbound volume or volumes shall be considered supplements.  
25 The revisor of statutes, with the approval of the legislative coordinating  
26 council, may provide for printing and delivery of additional copies of  
27 supplements to volumes of the Kansas Statutes Annotated.

28 (b) The secretary of state shall dispose of full sets of supplements,  
29 including the general index paperbound volume or volumes, as follows:

30 *First*, by delivering to all state officers, county officers and other de-  
31 partments and officers the same number of sets and in the same manner  
32 as provided by K.S.A. 77-138, and amendments thereto, for the distri-  
33 bution of volumes of the Kansas Statutes Annotated and by delivering to  
34 each member of the legislature ~~three sets~~ *one set* of such supplements.

35 *Second*, the balance of such supplements including as a part thereof  
36 the general index paperbound volume or volumes, after such distribution,  
37 shall be kept by the secretary of state for sale. Supplements for individual  
38 volumes except index volumes shall be sold at the per volume price fixed  
39 therefor by the legislative coordinating council under this section. Com-  
40 plete sets of cumulative supplements including the general index volume  
41 shall be sold at the complete set price fixed therefor by the legislative  
42 coordinating council under this section.

43 (c) The secretary of state shall remit all moneys received from the

1 sale of supplements under this section to the state treasurer in accordance  
2 with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto. Upon  
3 receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire  
4 amount in the state treasury to the credit of the state general fund.

5 (d) The legislative coordinating council shall fix the per volume and  
6 complete set prices of the cumulative supplements for the Kansas Statutes  
7 Annotated sold under this section to recover the costs of printing and  
8 binding such supplements. The legislative coordinating council shall re-  
9 vise such prices from time to time for the purposes of covering and re-  
10 covering such costs.

11 Sec. 7. K.S.A. 77-428 is hereby amended to read as follows: 77-428.

12 (a) At the beginning of each calendar year the secretary of state, as soon  
13 as possible, shall assemble all rules and regulations, except temporary  
14 rules and regulations, filed during the preceding year in accordance with  
15 the provisions of this act. The state rules and regulations board shall de-  
16 termine which of such rules and regulations are to be published in the  
17 Kansas administrative regulations or annual supplement as provided in  
18 this act.

19 (b) Annual supplements shall be cumulative and shall include all rules  
20 and regulations published in the annual supplement in the next preceding  
21 year which remain in force and effect on the effective date of the current  
22 supplement, together with all rules and regulations, other than temporary  
23 rules and regulations, which were regularly adopted and filed in the office  
24 of the secretary of state in the year next preceding the year when such  
25 annual supplement is published and which were approved for publication  
26 by the state rules and regulations board.

27 (c) The secretary of state shall prepare annual supplements to the  
28 rules and regulations and material to be published therewith, ~~in one or~~  
29 ~~more paperbound volumes~~ in the form determined by the secretary of  
30 state. The annual supplement of rules and regulations shall be published  
31 and shall include a general index of all rules and regulations contained  
32 therein and such notes, cross references and explanatory materials as will  
33 facilitate the use of such supplements. ~~All rules and regulations and ma-~~  
34 ~~terial published in the annual supplement shall be delivered to and pub-~~  
35 ~~lished by the director of printing. Authentication~~ Certification of all sup-  
36 plement volumes shall be in the manner provided in K.S.A. 77-429, and  
37 amendments thereto. ~~The director of printing shall print the number of~~  
38 ~~copies requisitioned by the secretary of state.~~

39 Sec. 8. K.S.A. 77-429 is hereby amended to read as follows: 77-429.

40 Before ~~any copies of the~~ Kansas administrative regulations or the annual  
41 supplement thereto shall be ~~printed by the division of printing or sold~~  
42 ~~and delivered~~ published by the secretary of state, they shall be examined  
43 and compared by the attorney general and the secretary of state, and if

1 they contain all rules and regulations approved for ~~printing~~ *publication*  
2 by the board, and otherwise comply with the terms of this act, they shall  
3 so certify ~~in writing~~ and after such ~~authentication~~ *certification* they shall  
4 be deemed and held to be “Kansas administrative regulations” and evi-  
5 dence in all courts having jurisdiction in the state; and such ~~authentication~~  
6 *certification* shall be ~~printed~~ *provided* on each ~~copy~~ *publication* of Kansas  
7 administrative regulations and annual supplement thereto.

8 Sec. 9. K.S.A. 2002 Supp. 77-430 is hereby amended to read as fol-  
9 lows: 77-430. (a) The ~~Kansas administrative regulations shall be printed~~  
10 ~~by the director of printing and delivered to the secretary of state who~~  
11 ~~shall dispose of them as follows~~ *provide free access to the Kansas admin-*  
12 *istrative regulations in a form determined by the secretary of state to the*  
13 *following:*

14 ~~First, the secretary of state shall deposit in~~ (1) The supreme court law  
15 library and the state library ~~such number of copies~~ as the state law li-  
16 brarian and the state librarian, respectively, shall request for use in the  
17 law library and the state library, for purposes of the publication collection  
18 and depository system established under K.S.A. 75-2566, and amend-  
19 ments thereto, and for the purpose of exchange. The secretary of state  
20 shall ~~distribute~~ *provide access* to the university of Kansas school of law  
21 and to Washburn university school of law ~~the number of copies~~ as the  
22 librarians of the schools of law, respectively, certify to the secretary of  
23 state as necessary for the purpose of exchange. ~~The secretary of state shall~~  
24 ~~retain two copies for use in the secretary of state’s office.~~

25 ~~—Second, the secretary of state shall distribute:~~

26 ~~—(1) One copy to each~~ (2) *Each* member of the legislature ~~at the time~~  
27 ~~of taking office, after election or appointment, for the member’s first term~~  
28 ~~of office as a member of either house of the legislature which commences~~  
29 ~~on or after the second Monday of January in 1991, except that a term of~~  
30 ~~office as a member of either house of the legislature, whether a complete~~  
31 ~~or partial term of office, shall not be construed for purposes of this dis-~~  
32 ~~tribution to be the member’s first term of office if such term of office is~~  
33 ~~part of a continuous period of service as a member of either house of the~~  
34 ~~legislature or both houses of the legislature, in any combination of con-~~  
35 ~~secutive terms of office;~~

36 ~~(2) one copy each to~~ (3) the governor, lieutenant governor, attorney  
37 general and state historical society library;

38 ~~(3) to~~ (4) the several offices of the judicial branch of state govern-  
39 ment, ~~the number of copies~~ *as* necessary to conduct the official business  
40 of such offices, as requested by the chief justice of the supreme court;

41 ~~(4) two copies to~~ (5) the Washburn university school of law, for use  
42 in the law library, and ~~two copies to~~ the university of Kansas school of  
43 law, for use in the law library;



1 ~~(5) one copy to~~ (6) each county law library, upon request by the  
2 librarian thereof;

3 ~~(6) one copy to~~ (7) the city library in each city of the first and second  
4 classes, upon request by the librarian thereof; ~~and~~

5 ~~(7) one copy to~~ (8) each county library, upon request by the librar-  
6 ian thereof;

7 ~~Third, the secretary of state shall distribute to the several offices of the~~  
8 ~~legislative branch of government, the number of copies necessary to con-~~  
9 ~~duct the official business of such offices, as follows: (1) To~~

10 (9) the office of revisor of statutes as the revisor of statutes shall  
11 request;

12 ~~(2) to~~ (10) the legislative research department as the director of leg-  
13 islative research shall request;

14 ~~(3) to~~ (11) the division of post audit as the post auditor shall request;  
15 and

16 ~~(4) to~~ (12) the division of legislative administrative services as the  
17 director of legislative administrative services shall request.

18 ~~Fourth, the balance of the Kansas administrative regulations after such~~  
19 ~~distribution shall be kept by the secretary of state for sale as provided by~~  
20 ~~this section.~~

21 (b) The Kansas administrative regulations may be ~~purchased in com-~~  
22 ~~plete sets or in single volumes. Single volumes of the Kansas administra-~~  
23 ~~tive regulations shall be sold by the secretary of state at the per volume~~  
24 ~~a price fixed by the secretary of state under this section. Complete sets~~  
25 ~~of the Kansas administrative regulations shall be sold by the secretary of~~  
26 ~~state at the per set price fixed therefor by the secretary of state under~~  
27 ~~this section. Copies may be delivered by postpaid mail by the secretary~~  
28 ~~of state. The secretary of state shall fix by rules and regulations the prices~~  
29 ~~of the Kansas administrative regulations. The secretary of state shall revise~~  
30 ~~such prices from time to time for the purposes of covering and recovering~~  
31 ~~such costs.~~

32 (c) All moneys received from such sales shall be remitted to the state  
33 treasurer in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 75-4215, and  
34 amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state  
35 treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state treasury to the credit  
36 of the ~~state general information and copy service fee~~ fund.

37 ~~(d) The secretary of state shall fix by rules and regulations the per~~  
38 ~~volume and complete set prices of the Kansas administrative regulations~~  
39 ~~sold under this section to recover the costs of printing and binding such~~  
40 ~~volumes. The secretary of state shall revise such prices from time to time~~  
41 ~~for the purposes of covering and recovering such costs.~~

42 (d) *The publication requirements under subsection (a) of this section*  
43 *may be accomplished by providing the information in an electronic*

1 *format.*

2 Sec. 10. K.S.A. 77-430a is hereby amended to read as follows: 77-  
3 430a. ~~(a)~~ The secretary of state shall edit and prepare for ~~printing and~~  
4 publication volumes of rules and regulations which replace existing vol-  
5 umes of the Kansas administrative regulations within the limitations of  
6 available appropriations therefor. Replacement volumes shall be ~~pub-~~  
7 ~~lished and printed~~ *provided* in the same format and in accordance with  
8 the same ~~printing~~ specifications used in the volume replaced and shall be  
9 ~~authenticated~~ *certificated* as required by K.S.A. 77-429, and amendments  
10 thereto. ~~Replacement volumes of the Kansas administrative regulations~~  
11 ~~shall be printed by the director of printing and delivered to the~~ *The* sec-  
12 retary of state ~~who~~ shall distribute and sell such replacement volumes in  
13 the same manner as provided in K.S.A. 77-430, and amendments thereto,  
14 for the distribution and sale of other volumes of the Kansas administrative  
15 regulations, ~~except that each member of the senate or house of repre-~~  
16 ~~sentatives shall receive one copy of each replacement volume for the~~  
17 ~~purpose of updating the set of the Kansas administrative regulations re-~~  
18 ~~ceived at the time of taking office for the member's first term of office~~  
19 ~~as a member of either house of the legislature as provided in K.S.A. 77-~~  
20 ~~430, and amendments thereto.~~

21 ~~—(b)—Whenever it shall become necessary to print additional copies of~~  
22 ~~any volume of the Kansas administrative regulations, the secretary of state~~  
23 ~~shall requisition the necessary number of copies from the director of~~  
24 ~~printing.~~

25 Sec. 11. K.S.A. 2002 Supp. 77-431 is hereby amended to read as  
26 follows: 77-431. (a) ~~Copies of the Annual supplements to the Kansas ad-~~  
27 ~~ministrative regulations shall be printed and delivered to the secretary of~~  
28 ~~state who shall distribute them as follows:~~

29 ~~—First, the secretary of state shall transmit the same number of copies~~  
30 ~~of each annual supplement~~ *provided* in the same manner as provided in  
31 ~~the first, second and third clauses of subsection (a) of K.S.A. 77-430, and~~  
32 ~~amendments thereto, for distribution of Kansas administrative regula-~~  
33 ~~tions, except that each member of the senate or house of representatives~~  
34 ~~shall receive one copy of each annual supplement for the purpose of~~  
35 ~~updating the set of the Kansas administrative regulations received at the~~  
36 ~~time of taking office for the member's first term of office as a member~~  
37 ~~of either house of the legislature as provided in K.S.A. 77-430, and~~  
38 ~~amendments thereto.~~

39 ~~Second, the balance of annual~~ (b) *Annual* supplement volumes ~~after~~  
40 ~~such distribution shall be kept~~ *may be sold* by the secretary of state ~~for~~  
41 ~~sale at the per supplement volume at a price, or the complete set price~~  
42 ~~if more than one volume is published for any annual supplement, which~~  
43 ~~is fixed by the secretary of state under this section.~~ *The secretary of state*

1 shall fix by rules and regulations the price for each annual supplement to  
2 the Kansas administrative regulations. The secretary of state shall revise  
3 such prices from time to time for the purposes of covering and recovering  
4 such costs.

5 (b) Moneys received from the sale of supplements under this section  
6 shall be remitted to the state treasurer in accordance with the provisions  
7 of K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such  
8 remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state  
9 treasury to the credit of the ~~state general~~ *information and copy service*  
10 *fee fund*.

11 ~~(c) The secretary of state shall fix by rules and regulations the per~~  
12 ~~volume price, or the complete set price if more than one volume is pub-~~  
13 ~~lished, for each annual supplement to the Kansas administrative regula-~~  
14 ~~tions sold under this section to recover the costs of printing and binding.~~  
15 ~~The secretary of state shall revise such prices from time to time for the~~  
16 ~~purposes of covering and recovering such costs.~~

17 Sec. 12. K.S.A. 75-430, 75-431, 75-432, 77-151, 77-428, 77-429 and  
18 77-430a and K.S.A. 2002 Supp. 77-138, 77-165, 77-430 and 77-431 are  
19 hereby repealed.

20 Sec. 13. This act shall take effect and be in force from and after its  
21 publication in the statute book.

22  
23  
24  
25  
26  
27  
28  
29  
30  
31  
32  
33  
34  
35  
36  
37  
38  
39  
40  
41  
42  
43